Benton County Board of Adjustment

Regular Hearing – December 2, 2010 – 7 p.m.

Planning Annex – 1002 Dudley Avenue

Prosser, WA 99350

The Chairman opened the hearing at 7 p.m.

NOTE:  The Board of Adjustment minutes are a summary of the testimony presented at the hearing, not a verbatim transcript.

NOTE:  All persons present that wished to testify on any actions presented to the Board of Adjustment tonight had been sworn in.  

ROLL CALL:



PRESENT:
Brent Chigbrow

ABSENT: Dean Burows



Bob Page

Glenn Bestebreur



Herb Everett


STAFF:
Clark A. Posey, Senior Planner



Carel Hiatt – Recorder

MOTION:  Mr. Page moved and Mr. Everett seconded the motion that the September 2, 2010 Board of Adjustment minutes be approved as corrected and will be signed by the Chairman Brent Chigbrow. Motion carried.

NOTE: The minutes will need to be approved again at the January 6, 2011 hearing, as Mr. Burows was not in attendance.  Mr. Burows conducted part of the Board of Adjustment’s hearing and will also need to sign the September 2, 2010 minutes.  

ELECTION OF OFFICERS:


MOTION:  It was moved and seconded that the 2010 Officers – Chairman Brent Chigbrow and Vice-Chairman – Dean Burows be retained in their current positions for the 2011 year.  Motion carried.

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS:


CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT – CUP 08-07 – VERMULM


SPECIAL USE PERMT – SP 06-16 – BRANCHES/VINES


SPECIAL USE PERMIT – SP 08-08 – MAYFLOWER METALS/FINCH


MOTION:
It was moved and seconded that the one-year extension request for Consent Agenda Items – CUP 08-07/SP 08-08 be granted and that SP 06-16 request by the applicant to withdraw this action from further review by the Board be granted.  Motion carried.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:


SPECIAL USE PERMIT – SP 10-09 – PAT/KORENE REDMAN

The Planner summarized for the Board that the applicant had satisfied all the requirements of the Benton Franklin Health District and the Washington State Department of Health as noted in BOA 3.2 and BOA 3.3.

The Chairman then closed the public portion of the hearing.


MOTION:  Mr. Everett moved and Mr. Page seconded the motion that the Board of Adjustment, pursuant to the aforementioned controlling factors, finds that the application of Pat/Korene Redman – SP 10-09 should be approved and that SP 04-16 was now in compliance with the BFHD and WSDOH as noted in the following exhibits – BOA 3.2 and BOA 3.3 and with the conditions as outlined in the staff report dated, May 26, 2010 and that the Chairman, in conjunction with the Secretary of the Board of Adjustment, prepare and adopt written findings and conclusions that articulate and are consistent with the findings, conclusions and/or decisions made by the Board of Adjustment tonight.  Motion carried.


VARIANCE REQUEST – VAR 10-02 – DARRELL/JOLEA NICKERSON


MOTION:  It was moved and seconded that the Board of Adjustment withdraw VAR 10-02 from further review by the Board of Adjustment per the applicant’s request.  Motion carried.

NEW BUSINESS:


VARIANCE REQUEST – VAR 10-03 - the applicant is requesting a variance from BCC 11.12.030 of 15 feet from the required 55 foot front yard setback and a variance from BCC 11.52.040 of five feet from the required 10 foot side yard setback for the construction of a garage and storage building.  The application was deemed complete for processing on November 10, 2010. The site is located at 1244 N Neel Loop- Kennewick on Lot 40 of Lampson Homesites in Section 34, Township 9 North, Range 29 East, W.M.  Applicants:  Darrell/Jolea Nickerson – 1244 N Neel Loop – Kennewick, WA 99336.

The Planner summarized said action for the Board and entered into the record the following Exhibit Nos. E-1, BOA 1.1 to 1.17 and BOAH 1.1.  The applicant is presenting tonight requesting a variance due to the Lampson Homesites lots being substandard in size.  The City of Kennewick would like to see a 20-foot minimum setback from the property line to the garage doors, so that if cars were parked in front of the garage, they would not block the street.


APPLICANT TESTIMONY:  DARRELL NICKERSON – 1244 N. Neel Loop, Kennewick, WA 99336 stated that the reasoning for requesting a variance was due to the lot size.  He would be able to adhere to the comments from the City of Kennewick as stated in Exhibit BOA 1.11.  

The Chairman asked the applicant if he had read and understood the conditions of approval affixed to this variance request.  The applicant stated he had and they were all acceptable.  The property had already been surveyed.  


PROPONENT/OPPONENT TESTIMONY:  NONE.


APPLICANT REBUTTAL:  NONE

The Chairman closed the public portion of the hearing. 


MOTION:  Mr. Page moved and Mr. Chigbrow seconded the motion that the Board of Adjustment, pursuant to the aforementioned controlling factors, finds that the application of Darrell Nickerson – VAR 10-03 should be approved with the conditions as outlined in the staff report dated, November 17, 2010 that the Chairman, in conjunction with the Secretary of the Board of Adjustment, prepare and adopt written findings and conclusions that articulate and are consistent with the findings, conclusions and/or decisions made by the Board of Adjustment tonight.  Motion carried.


SPECIAL USE PERMIT – SP 10-18 – the applicant is requesting a special use permit for the operating of a kennel for the keeping of up to five dogs total.  The application was deemed complete for processing on November 5, 2010.  The site is located at 27505 S 875 PR SE – Kennewick on Lot 1 of Short Plat 936 in Section 21, Township 8 North, Range 28 East, W.M.  Applicant:  Patricia A. Downey-Eagan – 27505 S 875 PR SE – Kennewick, WA 99338

The Chairman opened the public hearing.  The Planner summarized said action to the Board and entered into the record the following exhibits: E-1, BOAR 1.1 TO BOAR 1.2, BOAM 1.1 TO BOAM 1.14, BOAH 1.1 TO BOAH 1.3.  The Planner also informed the Board that this special use permit was before them due to a Code Enforcement action.


APPLICANT TESTIMONY:  PATRICIA A. DOWNEY-EAGAN – 27505 S 875 PR SE – Kennewick, WA 99338 requested a continuance from the Board in order to receive additional information that would be forthcoming from the Benton County Sheriff’s Office.  She was unawares that by obtaining the fourth dog she was now out of compliance with the Benton County Code and would need to apply for a special use permit for the operation of a kennel.  She will return to having only three dogs when the older one passes. Summary testimony BOAH 1.4 which includes the following:  Talking points – five pages, letter from R.P. McGraw, DVM – dated December 1, 2010, Bunchgrass Veterinary Medical Records – two pages, CGC – Test/Registration Form – three pages, Benton Franklin Humane Society Form, Letter from Matt/Melanie Malin dated April 5, 2010, Letter from Monika Williams.

Mr. Chairman:  Are you requesting a continuance on this action? Applicant:  Yes.

Applicant:  I applied for some documents from the Benton County Sheriff’s Department and as of yesterday I was number 35 on the list.  It has quite a bit to do with what is going on and the people’s objections and things.  I would be happy to explain to you what we want to do.

Mr. Chairman:  As long as you are hear and there are people in the audience that are probably going to testify one way or another, I think that we will go ahead and take your testimony tonight and the folk’s testimony.  It all depends on whether we grant your continuance or not.  We will see what you have to say tonight.

Applicant:  Okay, several people were going to come tonight, but they are not present as it was assumed that this action would be continued.

Mr. Chairman:  Would you rather not give your testimony tonight?  

Applicant:  I would rather have a continuance, so that I could get everything together.  I can tell you what we planned.

Mr. Chairman:  I think that we need to continue on with this action.  I think that you need to let us know what you are going to do as we have folks present at this hearing tonight.

Applicant:  That is what I discussed with the Planner yesterday, that they would have their say, so that they would not have to drive back.

Mr. Chairman:  We will hear your testimony and their testimony and then the Board will make a decision to continue this action or not.

Applicant:  Okay.  We moved into the neighborhood two years ago with four dogs.  We did not know that having a fourth dog would require a kennel permit to be obtained from Benton County.  We are asking to keep the four dogs until one passes away and then we would be in compliance.  Minor changes to the property need to be done, such as fencing.  No additional buildings will be constructed.  

Mr. Chairman:  Are the dogs kept inside or outside?

Applicant:  The dogs have their own doggy door.  We have an area with two doghouses – more then adequate space for the dogs.  

Mr. Chairman:  Is your yard fenced?

Applicant:  Yes, except when the trees fall on the fence line and take it out, which is one of the fencing issues to be addressed.  The applicant and neighbor are working on the fencing issue due to the tree.  

Mr. Chairman:  Your son has a dog of which you are taking care of, correct?

Applicant:  My son Justin has a six-month old puppy.  The applicant has no intention of keeping the dog. The applicant did not want the dog in the first place.  

Mr. Page:  How many dogs are currently on site older then six months of age?

Applicant:  Four, the son’s dog will be six months old next week; but it resides with her son in Richland.

Mr. Chairman:  In one of the letters that the Board received there was a comment in there about dangerous dogs.  The letter states that two of the dogs that are located on the applicant’s property had been deemed dangerous dogs and the applicant was fined 500 dollars per dog.  Is that a fact?

Applicant:  No sir.  What happened is that the dogs were found to be potentially dangerous dogs because they left the property.  My son, the teenager, let them out the front door, which he was not supposed to do.  A woman was riding by on her horse, the dogs scared the horse, and the lady fell off of her horse and sustained some injuries.  The dogs have not left the property since that incident.  The fencing problem has now been fixed.  However, the neighbor’s dogs continue to create holes in the fencing.

Mr. Chairman:  The dogs escaped out the front, correct.

Applicant:  Right.

Mr. Chairman:  It was stated previously by the applicant that the fencing had been repaired.

Applicant:  The neighbor’s dog had dug a hole in the fencing.  Do you want to see pictures of the hole and fencing?

Mr. Chairman:  Yes.

Applicant:  The exhibits are labeled as BOAH 1.5 to BOAH 1.22, which show the hole in the fenced area, neighbor’s dogs, etc.

Mr. Chairman:  The Board received written testimony that the dogs had been out in the street many times, frightening neighbors, starting dog fights, scaring people’s horses as they rode by your residence.  Families also walk by your residence, the dogs come out charging into the street and parents have to carry their children farther up the road.  That does not sound like to me that the dogs are contained.

Applicant:  Those are not my dogs. My dogs do not go out in the front as a rule with the one exception as discussed.  The dogs live in the back yard.  I have statements from a couple of people who were going to come tonight, but thought that it would be continued, so they did not come.  One from a lady who walks by my residence two or three times a day with her child.  Since the horse incident she has not even seen the dogs outside.  Like I stated we have fixed the fencing.  My shepherd jumped the fence once, prior to  the fence and gates being repaired.  

Mr. Chairman:  How many times has the Sheriff’s Department been to your residence?

Applicant:  Two. I am waiting that paperwork from the Sheriff’s Department.  We have never had another summons on our door.  We have never talked to a Sheriff other then for that one incidence.  So, as far as I know and it states in these papers that all of these people have been filing complaints, but I have heard nothing.  When I talk to the Sheriff’s Department they said we do not have anything on the computer, we will need to go search our records.  I have received no written notice from the Sheriff’s Office other then the one incident.  No Sheriff’s have been knocking on my door.  Some of the neighbors stated that they have knocked on my door, which is entirely possible, but my dogs would have alerted me.  I have record of one noise complaint.  I could not find any records of anybody filing complaints past the July date.  

Mr. Page:  You presented a picture of a black dog and brown dog and written on the back of the exhibit it states “Not our dog”.  Are these inside your building?

Applicant:  They are not my dogs.  

Mr. Page:  Are they in your building?

Applicant:  Yes! The black one is okay and comes into my yard frequently. The brown dog digs the holes from the outside of the fence to the inside, which is how my dogs get out of the yard. 

Mr. Page:  Is any food left out?

Applicant:  Food is in the house.  She went on to further explain how they have had to place rocks, etc. as noted in the pictures to keep the dogs inside due to the holes being dug.  She has talked to animal control, but her residential area does not fall under their jurisdiction.  The Sheriff’s solution was to shoot the dog. The county will have an animal control officer available in January.  

Mr. Chairman:  Another letter addressed continuous barking.

Applicant:  There are many dogs in the neighborhood.  Residents have yelled at her dogs to shut up, but they were not the ones barking as they were in the house with her sleeping.  The dogs are never out at night or when she is down with the horses.  

Mr. Chairman:  He had four to five letters of written testimony that all stated the same, the dogs were barking.  

Applicant:  The dogs are locked in the house at 10 p.m. 

Mr. Chairman:  The letters state that neighbors cannot walk their dogs as the applicant’s dogs come out and bother their dogs nor could they have a barbecue or friends over as the applicant’s dogs bark constantly.  

Applicant:  The applicant stated that would be the neighbor’s dog.  She continued to state that no one in the area had come to her regarding the issues with her dogs.  

Mr. Chairman:  Letter of written testimony – “We have tried to talk several times to the neighbors about the dog barking, they will not answer the door or make remarks that they are trying to.”

Applicant:  That was when they had her son’s puppy, which barked all the time.  The Aussie on site currently was a barker. She was working with the dog and even the neighbor agreed that the barking was less.  The shelter dog does not bark.  Once the oldest dog is gone then she will stay within the parameters of keeping only three dogs on site.  She stated that the Humane Society had contacted the County and more then three dogs were acceptable. If she had known that was not acceptable, there would not have been a fourth dog.  

Mr. Chairman:  Expressed concern over barking dogs and two dogs being deemed dangerous.

Applicant:  There was no dangerous dog filing on her dogs.  

Mr. Chairman:  What is going to guarantee to this Board that those dogs would not leave that property again?

Applicant:  We have not had anybody get out in six months.  We worked diligently on the fencing problem with our adjacent neighbor.  

Mr. Chairman:  It states that two of the dogs still have been deemed dangerous dogs.  

Applicant:  No, they have not.

Mr. Chairman:  Were you fined 500 dollars as this document states?

Applicant:  No, I was not.  I do not know where that information came from.  The potentially dangerous dog designation was not a fine, but a 250-dollar registration fee for the dogs.  I can provide you with that.  I did not come prepared to address that matter.

Applicant:  The applicant noted a letter from Monika Williams who stated that since the horse incident the dogs have not left the applicant’s property. (BOAH 1.3)

Applicant:  She had contacted the Planning Department explained the situation with the Sheriff’s Office and would like to request a continuance.  She could provide the Board with the documents by dropping them off at the Planning Department tomorrow.

Mr. Page:  Why are you taking care of your son’s dog that no longer qualifies as a puppy?

Applicant:  I am not anymore.

Mr. Page:  So then you only have four dogs.

Applicant:  That is correct.  The fourth dog came from Benton Franklin Humane Society.  

Mr. Page:  You have a dog area according to your diagram 72 feet wide by 50 feet, which is supposedly fenced.  

Mr. Page.  You state that the dogs are in the house at night and they do not bark at night.

Applicant:  That is true at 10 p.m. every night I shut the door.  The dogs bark at the horses.  Four dogs were declared potentially dangerous and one was put down.  Licensing fee for a special license for a dog – they never bit anybody even when the lady fell off of her horse – they did not become aggressive to her, bite her or the horse.  Part of that was lack of training as the applicant’s dogs are not used to horses.  The applicant pays a 50-dollar fee every year to the county to keep the dogs.  The dogs were not deemed dangerous. If the dogs were considered dangerous then an enclosed pen would have been constructed and abide by other rules imposed.  

Mr. Posey:  The Planner read a document from District Court “Declaration of Potentially Dangerous Dogs” BOAM 1.11.

Applicant:  The Judge made it very clear to me that there were no extenuating circumstances allowed.  The question was did the dogs leave the property.  The applicant’s question was were the dogs the applicants or a neighbor’s dog that caused the problem. The applicant accepted full responsibility when it was confirmed that the dogs in question were indeed the applicant’s dogs. The applicant submitted her written testimony BOAH 1.4 and pictures BOAH 1.5 to 1.22.


PROPONENT TESTIMONY:  Written testimony from Monika Williams – BOAH 1.22 who stated that since the horse incident the dogs have not left the applicant’s property.  


OPPONENT TESTIMONY:  TODD RAY – 27404 S 887 PR SE – Kennewick, WA  99338 submitted a petition – BOAH 1.23 and pictures BOAH 1.24 to BOAH 1.26.  He resides directly behind the applicant.  He outlined his residence on the aerial provided – BOAH 1.1.  Issues noted:  (1) unbearable amount of barking during the day and night, (2) dogs chase the horses (3) horses escape and end up on his and the neighbor’s property, (4) fencing in disrepair with the only repair being the installation of a small hot wire. 

Mr. Chairman:  The applicant was not asking for more dogs, just keep the current four.

Mr. Todd:  Four dogs, too many.

Mr. Chairman:  Are you the closest neighbor?

Mr. Todd:  Actually, the farthest away.  The dog barking is a nuisance.

Mr. Page:  Do you recognize the applicant’s dogs?

Mr. Todd:  Yes, I don’t really see any other dogs except for the applicants.

Mr. Chairman:  Do the dogs run the whole property?

Mr. Todd:  The dogs are not contained, run the whole property, chase the horses and the condition of the fence was as shown on the exhibits.  The fencing has still not been repaired.

The Planner informed Mr. Todd that if the applicant removes one dog then she would be in compliance with the Benton County Code for the allowance of three dogs without necessitating the need for a special use permit.

Mr. Todd understood the situation.

Mr. Chairman asked Mr. Todd to outline the horse area, his yard and the area where the horses escape and end up in the neighbor’s yard.


GLORIA LAWSON – 27104 S 887 PR SE – Kennewick, WA 99338 stated her complaint was due to the incessant barking that goes on all day.  

Mr. Chairman asked if the horses or dogs entered into her yard.

Ms. Lawson replied no as her yard was all fenced, but the barking was unbearable.


APPLICANT REBUTTAL:  Patricia Eagan stated that a hot wire had been installed to contain the horses.  Addressing the barking matter, no proof that it was her dogs.  The applicant again noted the need for obtaining the Sheriff’s documents.

Mr. Chairman:  The letters address the incessant barking issues.  People have come to your residence, knocked and no response.  

Applicant:  No notes have been left at our residence regarding these issues.  Install anti-bark device, just wants to keep the dogs currently on site until the oldest one dies.  

Mr. Chairman:  You have one dog too many.  If you have only three dogs then you would not be before the Board of Adjustment.  

Applicant:  If she had been made aware of the Benton County Code ruling with regards to keeping of more then three dogs, she would not have bought the house.  

Mr. Chairman:  The issue was the barking of your dogs and how this matter was going to be resolved, get down to the legal limit of three dogs or get a kennel permit.  With the information presented to night the Chairman could not approve this special use permit application.  The testimony presented in opposition to this kennel was not addressed by the applicant as to how she would resolve these issues, such as barking, chasing people and loose horses.

The Chairman closed the public portion of the hearing. The Board would also deliberate on whether or not to continue this action.

Mr. Page:  Kennel permits require a building that is heated, cooled and cleanable, site obscure fencing would be a requirement.

Mr. Everett:  Feels that this kennel request did not meet or address the necessity of a building for the housing of the dogs.  The applicant would need to reduce the dogs to three.  If problems continue with the three dogs then the surrounding property owners would need to contact the Benton County Sheriff’s Office or the Animal Control Officer.  No justification for continuance or granting of this special use permit application.

Mr. Chairman:  Agreed with the rest of the Board members.  The number of dogs to be allowed would be three.  Response to the barking of the dogs would then be the responsibility of the Animal Control Officer or Benton County Sheriff’s Office.  Documentation from the Benton County Sheriff’s Office would not aide the Board in the granting of a continuance on this action.

MOTION:  Mr. Everett moved and motion seconded by Mr. Page that the Board of Adjustment, pursuant to the aforementioned controlling factors, finds that the application of Patricia Downey Eagan – SP 10-18 should be denied for the following reasons: (1) District Court Case dated May 11, 2010 declarations of potentially dangerous dogs are affirmed, (2) barking disturbance day and night, (3) non-confinement of dogs, (4) no kennel building, (5) inadequate fencing to retain dogs on site, (6) Sheriff’s complaints, (7) no attempt by the applicant to resolve issues relating to her dogs, (8) incompatibility with surrounding properties due to the applicant’s lack of control of the dogs (9) opponent testimony presented and that the Chairman, in conjunction with the Secretary of the Board of Adjustment, prepare and adopt written findings and conclusions that articulate and are consistent with the findings, conclusions and/or decisions made by the Board of Adjustment tonight.  Motion carried.


SPECIAL USE PERMIT – SP 10-19 – the applicants are requesting a special use permit for the operating of a commercial kennel for up to 40 dogs to include breeding and selling of the dogs.  The application was deemed complete for processing on November 8, 2010.  The site is located at 179803 W Johnson Road – Prosser on Lot 3 of Short Plat 776 in Section 31, Township 9 North, Range 24 East, W.M.  Applicants:  David Roberts/Denice Runyon 179803 W Johnson Road – Grandview, WA 

The Chairman opened the public portion of the hearing.  The Planner entered into the record the following exhibits:  E-1, BOAR 1 to BOAR 1.2, BOAM 1.1 to BOAM 1.12, BOAH 1.1 to BOAH 1.15 and outlined the site on the aerial provided.


APPLICANT TESTIMONY:  DENICE RUNYON/DAVID ROBERTS – 179803 W Johnson Road Grandview, WA  98930 stated that the kennel business began in order to provide assistance to her special needs son. Forty dogs on site currently and some puppies.  The dogs are cared for by her family, individual doghouses, dog runs, heated dog dishes. BOAH 1.3 – Letter from Mary Thomas DVM stated that the dogs were well cared for and rarely in need of veterinary care for disease or emergencies. BOAH 1.11 - BFHD address liquid waste/solid waste/Public Water Supply – no need for separate septic system for liquid dog waste, double bag the solids and dispose of them with Waste Management.  The Chief Building Inspector told her to obtain a packet for the existing 8’by16’ building.  Fire extinguishers and fire alarms are already installed in the structures for the safety of the pets and this should satisfy the Fire Marshal’s requirements. Department of Ecology stated that if the situation remains the same double bagging the solids would be acceptable.  Public Works Department requires the paving of an approach of which the applicant does not agree.  She wanted an extension until the plans have been drawn up for the construction of her new building.  Six foot fencing installed and double gated.  She has about ten litters per year from her dogs.  She would debark the dogs if required.  None of the neighbors have approached her with regards to the barking and running of her dogs.  

Mr. Chairman:  How many dogs on site currently?

Ms. Runyon:  Forty with an average of 2-6 puppies per litter.

Mr. Chairman:  Potentially, there could be an abundance of dogs on site at one given time.

Ms. Runyon:  Correct.  The Sheriff did come to her residence recently due to a barking complaint.  She then decided to pursue the obtaining of a kennel license through Benton County.  The dog attack noted on Page 4, Number 13, were not her dogs and have since been destroyed.  Her dogs never get out.  The applicant would debark the dogs if necessary. The applicant would install site obscuring fencing if required; cedar fencing has already been installed around the birthing area.  

Mr. Chairman:  Road approach is a requirement seeing you are applying for a commercial license.  Dogs will need to be housed inside a climate-controlled building that can be sanitized and rinsed out, heated and cooled.  Installation of a dog run that is contained within your property and at night the dogs will need to be housed inside the contained area, so as not to disturb the neighbors.  Site obscured fencing will need to be installed around the dog run.  Forty dogs that have puppies could potentially produce on that site between 160 to 180 dogs.  

Ms. Runyon:  No, not all the dogs are breeding dogs.  Forty dogs on site, but only breeds them until they reach the age of 6 to 8 years old.  

Mr. Chairman:  How many dogs would be pregnant at one time?

Ms. Runyon:  Could all be pregnant after six months, but being a responsible dog breeder the applicant would not allow that to take place.  She outlined the area where the adult dogs are housed, puppies, kennels, etc.  The applicant again requested a continuance in order to submit construction plans of the new kennel facility. 

Mr. Everett: Would the new structure be larger then a 20 x 20?

Ms. Runyon:  Not interested in breeding or boarding other people’s dogs.  The applicant’s husband operates a landscaping and lawn maintenance business on site. 

Mr. Everett:  How long have you been in operation at this site?

Ms. Runyon:  About seven years.

Mr. Chairman:  How will you handle the liquid waste?

Ms. Runyon:  Straw would be placed down and picked up daily, bagged and disposed of in the dumpster. Waste Management would pick up the debris.  

DAVID ROBERTS: Building not larger then 20 x 20 then the Board would not need to see the schematic, correct.

Mr. Everett:  If Board approved a 20 x 20 building and then a change in size came about an amendment to this special permit would need to be submitted for review and approval.

The Planner stated that the Board would not limit the size of the building, but would limit the number of dogs.

Mr. Page:  Explain BOAH 1.13 pictures taken of the site showing dogs being chained.

Ms. Runyon:  The dogs at times would need to be isolated from the other dogs.

Mr. Page:  How many buildings do you have to house the 40 dogs?

Ms. Runyon:  One building for the birthing area, three bay buildings house seven dog houses, two 10x20 and a birthing kennel.


PROPONENT TESTIMONY:  None.


OPPONENT TESTIMONY:  DAN SCHNEIDER – 178503 W Johnson Road – Grandview, WA 98930 expressed concern over decrease in property values, barking, noise, handling of future complaints and odor.

The Planner replied that it would be up to the surrounding property owners and citizens of Benton County to inform the Planning Department. The Planning Department would then refer this action to Code Enforcement.

Mr. Schneider:  The present operation was it in compliance.  

Mr. Everett:  No, because the applicant had not obtained a special use permit from the Benton County Board of Adjustment for the operating of a commercial kennel.

Mr. Schneider:  What would be the timeframe in which the conditions of approval, buildings, etc. were to be completed?

Mr. Chairman:  The Board would grant one year to satisfy the conditions of approval.  If the conditions are not completed the applicant may request an extension pending approval from the Benton County Board of Adjustment.

Mr. Page:  Do you hear the dogs barking?

Mr. Schneider:  Yes – what about property devaluation.  He was opposed to the Board approving this special use permit for the operation of a commercial kennel.

Mr. Chairman:  The Board cannot address the situation of devaluation of property.  The applicant cannot conduct business until the conditions of approval have been satisfied and the permit issued.  The Chairman reviewed the conditions affixed to this special use permit application.

Mr. Schneider:  He stated that this kennel has been in operation for approximately four to five years.  He bought his residence knowing that a kennel operation was next door to his property.  The applicant was operating her business without a permit or a license.  


APPLICANT REBUTTAL:  DENICE RUNYON – stated that her husband was a landscaper and the site was beautiful not junky.  The dogs will bark regardless of her constructing a building to house the dogs.  The applicant has been tolerant of the Mexican music played on other people’s property for parties, etc.  Dogs play and bark so will she have to put up with people calling her constantly with regards to her barking dogs.  The applicant will debark the dogs if necessary, but would prefer not to debark all 40 dogs.  The kennel was operating prior to Mr. Schneider moving into the area.  The applicant was unaware of any complaints from surrounding property owners with regards to the kennel or barking dogs.  The Sheriff informed the applicant about obtaining a license for the operation of the kennel.  Applicant submitted her written testimony summarization BOAH 1.16.

The Planner questioned the applicant about the amount of debris located on site.  The applicant stated that was from her husband’s landscaping business.  The Planner informed the applicant that the debris would need to be removed.  

Mr. Chairman asked the applicant if she was still requesting an extension.  The applicant replied it would be only to show the board the schematics of the proposed kennel building.  The Chairman replied that then an extension would not be warranted.  The applicant agreed with the Chairman.

The Planner informed the Board that the current building on site was constructed to close to the property line.  The new building will need to abide by the imposed setback requirements.

The Chairman closed the public portion of the hearing.

Mr. Everett:  The application with the documentation of the applicant’s skill, care and operation of the kennel is responsive and commendable.  It appears from a facility standpoint a certain amount of improvements would need to be accomplished.  Will the current building need to be relocated?

The Planner will need to check the placement of the existing building with regards to the setback requirements.  

Mr. Everett:  Will the existing building have modifications required to meet the standards for the Building Department and the Planning Department? The Planner replied that the existing building may or may not need modifications; this will be addressed by the Benton County Building Department.

Mr. Everett:  The other comment to be made would be that the operation has been in existence for some time and apparently has not been a major problem in terms of generating complaints.  The applicant does present a willingness to deal with the barking issues, such as debarking programs.  If the Board does approve this action then a condition would need to be added that if there were any additional complaints then this would need to be done.  He could support this application.  

Mr. Page:  My biggest question was the applicant had forty adult dogs and anywhere between 30 to 60 puppies per year.  If the puppies were still on site after six months then the amount would be well over 40 adult dogs.  A procedure needs to be written up with regards to handling of additional dogs located on site over six months of age, disposal of waste, urine, and straw.  How many buildings will be located on site?  A 20x20 building would not be large enough to deal with 40 adult dogs.  The kennel will need to be climate controlled, concrete floor for easy cleaning, the kennel runs would need to have a site obscuring fence, but if there would be nothing for the dogs to see causing them to bark then a site obscuring fence would not be required.  He referenced Condition No. 1.

Mr. Everett:  The applicant applied for 40 dogs and if approved 40 dogs would be allowed, no more.

Mr. Chairman:  Forty dogs applied for and can have 30 puppies under the age of six months, but after six months the number of dogs would be limited back down to 40. It is understood that the applicant will be able to operate currently, as the dogs are on site and being well cared for, however, no additional animals will be allowed.  The conditions imposed upon this special use permit will need to be completed by the applicant.  

Mr. Everett would like the Board to discuss Condition No. 1 at a workshop with the Planning Department and the Prosecuting Attorney’s office.

Mr. Page asked who would track the compliance of this special use permit.  The Planner replied that that the Board could condition this application to be placed on the Benton County Planning and Code Enforcement yearly review listing even after the permit was issued.  Also, the surrounding property owners would need to contact the Planning Department or Code Enforcement if an issue arose.

The Planner:  The Board had mentioned the adding of a condition to debark the dogs if complaints were registered and size of the buildings would need to be one or more due to the number of dogs, sizes and breeds of dogs.

MOTION:  Mr. Everett moved and motion seconded by Mr. Chigbrow that the Board of Adjustment, pursuant to the aforementioned controlling factors, finds that the application of David Roberts/Denice Runyon SP 10-19 should be approved with the following added conditions: (13) that the dogs will be debarked if complaints are registered and (14) Special Use Permit SP 10-19 be placed on the Benton County Planning and Code Enforcement yearly review listing even after the permit was issued for compliance (15) Forty dogs applied for and can have 30 puppies under the age of six months, but after six months the number of dogs would be limited back down to 40. 16) It is understood that the applicant will be able to operate currently, as the dogs are on site and being well cared for, however, no additional animals will be allowed and that the Chairman, in conjunction with the Secretary of the Board of Adjustment, prepare and adopt written findings and conclusions that articulate and are consistent with the findings, conclusions and/or decisions made by the Board of Adjustment tonight.  Motion carried.

PLANNING DEPARTMENT REPORTS AND DISCUSSION:

The Planner informed the Board that Mr. Johnson had complied with all of the conditions of approval affixed to his special use permit SP 09-03.  The Planning Department would be issuing Mr. Johnson his permit upon conclusion of the Board being informed tonight.

The Board of Adjustment Hearing was adjourned at 10:00 p.m.

______________________________________________

BRENT CHIGBROW, CHAIRMAN

BENTON COUNTY BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

RECORDER:  CAREL HIATT

December 2, 2010 
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